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APPEARANCES : 

GKRY 

Carlton  Fields 

2 

L. SASS0 and JAMES MICHAEL WALLS 

, One Progress Plaza,  Suite 2300, St. 

~Petersburg, Florida  33701-4352,  appearing on behalf 

of Florida Power Corporation. 

R. ALEXANDER GLENN, director, Regulatory Counsel 

Group, P.O. Box 14042(BT-l5A), St. Petersburg, FL 33701, 

appearing on behalf of Florida Power Corporation. 

SUZANNE BROWNLESS, P . A . ,  1311-I3 Paul  Russell  Road, 

Suite 201, Tallahassee, FL 32301, appearing on behalf  of 

Panda  Energy International. 

DEBORAH D. HART, BOB ELIAS, and KATRINA D. 

WALKER, Florida Public Service Commission,. Di.vision 

of Legal Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0870,  appearing on behalf 

of t h e  Commission  Staff. 
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

MS. HART: Pursuant  to  the  Notice  issued  August 

22nd, 2000,  this  time  and  place have been noticed f o r  a 

Prehearing  Conference  in  docket  number 001064-E1, petition 

for determination of need of Hines 2 power plant by 

Florida Power Corporation. 

The purpose of the  Prehearing  Conference is to 

consider the  simplification of the  issues,  the 

identification of the  positions of the  parties on the 

issues,  the  possibility of obtaining  admissions of fact 

and of documents  which  will  avoid  unnecessary proof, the 

identification of exhibits, the  establishment of an order 

of witnesses,  and such other  matters as may aid in the 

disposition of the  action. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Let's take appearances. 

MR. SASSO: Garry Sasso with  Carlton Fields 

representing  Florida Power Corporation. 

MR. GLENN: Alex Glenn representing  Florida 

Power  Corporation. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Alex - -  

MR. GLENN: Glenn. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Spell your name. 

MR. GLENN: G-L-E-N-N. 

MR. WALLS:  Mike Walls, representing Florida 

?ower Corporation. _* 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. BROWNLESS: Suzanne Brownless representing 

Panda Energy, International. 

MS. HART: Deborah Hart, PSC  Legal Services. 

MS. WALKER: Katrina  Walker, PSC Legal Staff. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Brownless, have you 

filed  a  petition to intervene? 

MS. BROWNLESS: No, ma'am. We are here today  in 

order to inform  the  Commission  that  we  will be filing our  

petition  for  intervention  tomorrow. I can  briefly say 

what our  substantial  interest is f o r  the  benefit of the 

commissioner,  which is that we were an unsuccessful  bidder 

in  the RFP issued by Florida Power  Corporation  in  this 

pro j ect . 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Thanks f o r  the 

heads-up. File your petition  to intervene. We'll issue a 

separate'order on tha t  after  the  parties have an 

Dpportunity  to  respond. Since the  hearing  is  end of the 

nonth, I would  encourage you to hand-deliver  your  petition 

to intervene. 

MS. BROWNLESS: We will hand-deliver it 

tomorrow. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Preliminary  matters? 

MS. HART: Not at this  time,  Commissioner. 

I'here is a pending motion to strike,  but it relates to one 

D f  the issues, and we can either take it up now. or take Lt 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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up at  the time we get to that  issue. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: No, we'll take it up at the 

,time we get to t he  issue. Wasnft there a motion to have 

oral argument  on tha t  same matter? 

MS. HART: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: We'll  take  that up then, 

too. 

Under  Pending  Motions, I thought you'd listed 

something else,  too.  Staff has a pending - -  

MS. HART: We have listed an anticipated motion 

to strike portions of FPC's rebuttal  testimony.  We have 

not  filed  that  motion  at  this  point,  pending  the 

determination  today on FPC's motion to strike Issue 6 .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Then, it's not a pending 

motion,  right? 

MS. HART: You're correct. We'll strike that 

from Pending Motion section. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What about  Florida Power 

Corp-ls request fo r  confidential  classification? 

MS. HART: That is awaiting  Staff  analysis, 

which is  being  done  expeditiously,  and  we will get an 

xder to you in t h e  next few days  for your review  and seek 

to have t h a t  order issued expeditiously. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: When is the hearing? 

MS. HART: October  26th. -- 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: And when did t h e  request 

for  confidential  classification come in? 

MS. HART: At the  same time that  the  proceeding 

@as filed  on  August 7th. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Today is  Wednesday? 

roday I s Wednesday? 

MS. HART: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I'd like to have t h a t  order 

~y Friday I 

MS. HART: We'll do it. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: Okay. Here's what I intend 

:o do.  We're going to go page by page, and you all can 

?oint to me changes to your  draft  prehearing  order, 

zhanges to your position. We'll take up the motion to 

strike,  Issue 6, during the .discussion of Issue 6 .  

Ms. Brownless,  fair warning, I  think, you're 

lere to  listen. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Page 1. 

MS. HART: S ta f f  has  no comments. 

MR. SASSO: I  have  a  question.  Perhaps Staff 

:an respond. We were provided with a draft prehearing 

xder, which had a big  draft  stamp on it. This morning, 

Xaff brought  to  the  hearing  room a clean copy of t h a t .  

Iave there been any changes? Because we have had an -1 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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opportunity  last night to  review  the draft pwehearing 

order, but we haven't  seen  this before now. 

MS. €€ART: Mr. Sasso, I believe,  it is 

identical. 

MR. SASSO: Very well. Issue 6 is different. 

Staff  did circulate ,  on a separate page today,  yet  another 

formulation of Issue 6, which is different from what we 

had in our  draft. 

COMMISSIONER JA8ER: Ms. Hart, why don't you do 

this for us. As we go along, point out the  changes 

between the drafts on each page. And M r .  Sasso, we'll 

2roceed slowly so that we  can look at  each  page  carefully. 

No changes to page one,  though. 

MS. HART: NO. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Page 2, you added, it looks 

Like, a sentence  to the top of page 2 .  

MS. HART: That's correct.  We added a more 

zomplete  statement of the  statute of 403.519, including 

:he par t  of that statute that  says,  "other  matters within 

:he Commission's  jurisdiction  which it deems  relevant." 

MR. SASSO: We do have a concern  about  the 

addition that you've j u s t  identified, Commissioner Jaber. 

The point of the  identification of issues is to 

;pecify which matters  must be addressed  at  the  final 

learing. Staff had originally  included an issue  that was- 

FLORIDA PuBLrc SERVICE COMMISSION 
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a catch-all taken from the  statute,  other  matters  within 

the  Commission's  jurisdiction. We pointed  out  that  that's 

no t  an  issue,  that's  statutory  authority. And that  may 

give  rise  to some issues that need to  be  identified. 

Staff  agreed,  withdrew  that  as  an issue, and now it  has 

surf aced again  here. 

Our concern about  this is that it is open-ended, 

it doesn't tell us what, if  anything,  Staff  intends to do 

with  this a t  t h e  hearing. We believe we're  entitled  to 

fair notice of any  issues  that  Staff  intends to raise. We 

have  attempted  to identify a l l  those in t he  issues 

statement. And so, we're  concerned about simply  this 

recitation  that  the  hearing will be held  to  determine 

these  unidentified matters. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Staf f?  

MS. HART: It's simply a statement of what  the 

statute says. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: Mr. Sasso, I think  that  we 

can all agree that  Staff can't identify  issues  at  the  last 

minute nor raise any  concerns  that  the  parties don't have 

notice of. 

I'm not  concerned  with language in  the case 

oackground. I don't  think  that  gives staff any additional 

mthority or opportunity  to  raise an issue  that they're 

not going to  tell you about. -- 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. SASSO: With  that  understanding, we're okay 

with  that. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: And Staff,  I. would just ask 

that you make sure  that doesn't happen. 

All right. P a g e  3. 

Page 4. On page 4, please note that I've asked 

that  oral summaries be limited to five minutes. If you 

have  concerns about that, you need  to l e t  me know r igh t  

now. 

MR. SASSO: T h a t ' s  fine. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: All right. Order of 

Witnesses. 

MR. SASSO: I'm sorry. U p  at  the top of page 3 

under roman numeral 5, we d i d  have  a  suggestion  there 

before roman numeral 6 .  

4 ?  

I  guess, 

I guess, 

provides 

inserted 

affirmed 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. That would be page 

MR. SASSO: I'm sorry,  it's on our page 3 .  Oh, 

it's changed  now. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What's your concern? 

MR. SASSO: Let  me  just  catch up with  you here. 

it's on t he  new page 4, roman  numeral 5. This 

that all testimony that's been  prefiled will be 

after t h e  witness has taken the stand  and 

the correctness of t h e  testimony, et cetera. + -  

FLORIDA PUBLIC  SERVICE COMMISSION 
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What we  wanted to suggest  that  perhaps we could 

add a statement:  "provided,  however,  testimony  and 

exhibits  may be admitted by stipulation." 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Staff? 

MS. HART: I have no objection to that. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: We could  certainly  add it, 

Mr. Sasso, but  we do admit  exhibits  in  by  stipulation as a 

natter of course. 

MR. SASSO: And ,testimony. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And that  would be reflected 

in a stipulation. 

MR. SASSO: That's  fine;  again, as long as we 

lave that  understanding. 

,COMMISSIONER JABER: What is your concern 

?xactly? A r e  you working on stipulating  the  testimony  and 

2xhibits of a witness? 

MR. SASSO: We may have  certain  witnesses  who 

Xaff has no  questions of and who we have no particular 

-nterest in bringing to t he  hearing.  They  did  provide 

Irefiled  testimony, but if  everybody's  in  agreement, they 

lon't  need to actually  testify.  We  can excuse them of the 

leed to be here and not take up the  Commission's  time 

!ither. But we just wanted to be sure we would have  that 

)pportunity . 

COMMISSIONER JABER: All right,  let's do this. 

FLORIDA  PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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We are not going to add tha t  to the  prehearing order. As 

a matter of course,  certainly,  if  the  parties  and Staff 

agree to stipulating a witness's  testimony  in  without 

cross examination you'll bring that  to  the  Commissioners' 

attention. 

And to the  degree,  you  can  reach  agreement 

before the  prehearing  order is issued,  then, you need  to 

reflect  the  stipulation  under t he  proposed stipulation 

section of the  prehearing order for me. And when I sign 

the prehearing order, Mr. Sasso, Ill1 know who  those 

witnesses are.  

MR. SASSO: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Any changes to. the  order of 

witnesses? 

MR. SASSO: NO. 

MS. HART: No. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Page 5, you have possible 

rebuttal.  Rebuttal  testimony hasn't been filed yet in 

this case? 

MS. HART: It has been filed, Commissioner. We 

?ut that  in terms of possible rebuttal,  depending on the 

mtcome of the  motion  to  strike  today. 

MR. SASSO: This  rebuttal  testimony is addressed 

:o the  testimony of Mr. Dickens, whose testimony is 

Limited to Issue 6. -- 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: A l l  right. 

MR. SASSO: And we would also like  to  add, as an 

additional exhibit, again, contingent upon your ruling on 

Issue 6 ,  the  deposition of Mr. Billy Dickens,  which was 

taken  yesterday. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Remind me when we 

get to the exhibit  section. 

Any changes to your basic  position,  Mr. Sasso? 

MR. SASSO: There is a typographical error on 

page 6 near the  bottom of the page, last paragraph, second 

sentence,  third  line,  an l'of has been dropped between 

internal review and  supply-side. I guess, it's the top of 

page 7 now, 1% advised. It's still  at the  bottom of page 

6. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Yes, it% on page 6 ,  bottom 

paragraph, t h e  sentence will read,  I1FPC determined t o  seek 

approval to build Hines 2 only after conducting a rigorous 

internal review of supply-side and demand-side options.If 

MR. SASSO: Correct. And also, we would like to 

add a sentence  almost at the  very  end of the basic 

position  right before t h e  last  sentence,  which says I1for 

all these reasons," we would like to add the  following: 

tlFinally,  Staff's proposal  calls  upon t he  Commission to 

assert the power t o  deny FPC a reasonable rate of re turn  

on cos ts  prudently  incurred, in violation of F E P s  rights- 

FLORIDA  PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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under the Florida statutes and the Florida and United 

States  constitutions.ll 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: Mr. Sasso, I was going to 

ask you to  shorten your basic  position,  and you're making 

it  longer. 

All right.  Staff,  any  changes to your position? 

MS. HART: No. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Changes to Page 8. 

MR. SASSO: Yes. We have an  objection to the 

inclusion of Issues 1 and 2 .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. Let's talk 

about Issue- 1. S t a f f ,  your position is that Florida Power 

Corporation is an applicant  within the meaning of the  Act. 

Certainly,  they're not going  to argue with that. Why 

isn't  this a proposed  stipulation? 

MS. HART: W e  are prepared to stipulate to t h a t  

this morning. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A statement  in the  form of 

a stipulation  that  you are a proper  applicant should not 

be a problem. 

MR. SASSO: That's fine. We didn't  understand 

why it was identified  as an issue for  the  hearing. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. We're going to 

drop Issue 1, and you ' r e  going t o  ref lect  i n  t h e  

stipulation  section t ha t  they're a proper applicant. -- 

FLORIDA  PUBLIC  SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. HART: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Issue 2. 

MR. SASSO: Issue 2 is  similar  to  Issue 1, in 

3ur view.  During the issues  identification  conference, 

Staff  advised us that  they  took both Issues 1 and 2 from 

the Florida  Supreme  Court's  recent  decision in  what we 

z a l ' l  the  Duke  case or the Garcia case. 

That  decision, of course, didnlt  apply to - -  it 

nTasn't  designed to address  the  position of regulated 

?lorida  utilities and need proceeding. It was a merchant 

zase.  And  Issues 1 and 2 are taken from a case  addressing 

nerchant issues. 

As you'll recall,  Commissioner Jaber, the 

?lorida  Supreme  Court,  in  the Duke case,  addressed the 

question  whether an  independent  power  producer  that was 

lot fully  committed  under  contract  to a Florida  retail 

ltility had standing to seek a need determination.  The 

Iourt  held  that it did  not. 

That is the  context in which the  Court  discussed 

:he issue of fully  committed.  Staff's response to tha t  

tppears in the  draft  prehearing  order,  and  it says,  "In 

'ampa  Electric versus Garcia,  the  Court  did  not  draw a 

iistinction  between  merchant  plants and public  utility 

dants. Therefore, S t a f f  has no position  at t h i s  time 

lending  discovering  evidence  adduced at the  hearing." 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Well, we,  frankly, disagree that that  decision 

did not draw a distinction  between merchant plants  and 

public  utility  plants.  That was the  whole  point of t he  

case. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Staff? 

MS. HART: Contrary to what Mr. Sasso says, the 

Supreme Court did  make no distinction.  They  required, in 

their revised opinion, that it's clear t h a t  a. plant  must 

be fully  committed to Florida customers who purchase at 

retail rates. They don't say what fully  committed  is, .but 

they don't make any distinction  between  merchant  plants 

and  public  utilities. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: So, is your issue really 

whether this utility  will be fully committed, not whether 

a determination applies to merchant plants versus 

regulated utility? I mean, I think, Mr. Sasso has a good 

point  with  respect  to the first part of your position. 

You say the  Court dues not make a distinction. 

But what I hear you saying, Staff, is with respect to 

determining  whether  the  facility is fully  committed, you 

still believe you need  to make that  determination,  but you 

don't know what the answer to  that  question is until the 

evidence of the  hearing. 

MS. HART: Right, that's correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: So, if this issue stays in, 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. HART: Yes. 

MR. SASSO:  May  I respond, brief1 .v? 

The facility  here  will be owned and operated 

a regulated  retail  utility  that has an obligation to 

serve. That is t h e  commitment  that t he  Court said was 

lacking  in the Duke case. 

16 

by 

The only way an independent power producer  can 

come into  the  state is to  demonstrate a contractural 

commitment which was missing to a utility  that has an 

obligation  to  serve. If you would prefer, commissioner 

Jaber, I can call attention to some salient language in 

the decision which, I think,  makes this clear. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Do that, Mr. Sasso. 

MR. SASSO: Okay. The  decision begins with  the 

following: "The issue presented concerns the statutory 

authority of the PSC to grant a determination of need for 

an electric power company's proposal to build and operate 

a merchant plant in Volusia  County." 

The Court goes on to say, "We conclude that our 

analysis of t he  siting act, articulated  in  the  Nassau 

decisions, is applicable to the  present case." And the 

Court  reiterated, "A need determination  proceeding  is 

designed to examine the need resulting from an electric 

utility's  duty  to serve customers," which we have. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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"Nonutility  generators have no  similar  need,  because they 

are  not  required  to  serve 

The  Commission's  interpretation of Section 

403.519 comports  with  this  Courtls  decision  in Nassau 1. 

In  that  decision  we  rejected NassaWs argument  that  the 

siting  act does not  require  the PSC to determine  need on a 

utility-specific  basis. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr.  Sasso,  what  page are 

you on and  which  opinion? 

MR. SASSO: Page 13 of the s l i p  opinion of the 

Supreme  Court. The Court  went on to say, "Rathey, we 

agreed  with  the  Commission  that  the need to  be  determined 

under  Section 403.519 is  the  need of the  entity  ultimately 

consuming  the powervr; in  this  case, FPL. "Based  upon  our 

Nassau analysis of the  siting  act, we conclude  that  the 

3ranting of determination of need on the basis of the 

present  application does exceed t he  PSCIs present 

mthority . 

So, the Court was drawing  the  distinction 

Detween a retail  utility, such as Florida Power 

Zorporation, which has a statutory  obligation  to  serve  and 

:he need of an IPP, which doesnft exist,  except 

lerivatively under contract,  fully  committed to a retail 

ltility  that  has  such  an  obligation. 

Florida  Power  Corporation  is  committed  to  serve- 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3' 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2 2  

2 3  

24 

25 

18 

under statute.  That  is  the  commitment  that  confers 

standing upon us  to seek this  determination of need. The 

Court's  discussion of whether  the  applicant  is fully 

committed is in  the  context of a  merchant  plant,  which 

must  demonstrate  a  contractural  commitment  to  a  retail 

utility, which confers  the  standing  to  seek a 

determination of need. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Staff? 

MR. ELIAS: Something  else  that  was  present  in 

the  Duke  decision was a  firm  commitment by Duke to provide 

30 megawatts of electricity  to a retail-serving  utility 

pursuant to contract. So, there was an  element of a 

retail  utility's  need  in  that proposal. 

And the Court  found  that the  statutory  scheme, 

embodied in the  siting  act  and  FEECA was not  intended  to 

authorize  the  determination of a need for a  proposed  power 

plant  output  that is not fully committed  to  use by Florida 

customers who purchase  electrical power at  retail  rates. 
I 

The focus is on the  plant and not the  particular 

entity  that  is  pursuing  the  need  determination. And we 

think it's appropriate  for the Commission  to  consider in 

the  context of this  application  what the  Court's language 

meant with  respect  to  this  particular  facility. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Elias, didn't the  Court 

look at the 30 megawatts  and  said  that was indicative of-- 
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the  plant  not  being  fully  committed for use in the  Court's 

determination  that  this was not  a proper applicant? 

MR. ELIAS:  Let me see if I can  find t h e  

particular  language. 

"We agree  with  the  appellants t h a t  the fact that 

Duke's joining  with  New  Smyrna  in this arrangement for a 

30 megawatt  commitment  does  not  transform  the  application 

i n t o  one that  complies  with  the  siting act and FEECA." ' 

That's what  they  said, as far as that  commitment goes. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER:  When  you look at an 

application  for  need  of  a  retail  utility, a traditional 

IOU, as  opposed  to  a  merchant  power  plant,  in t h e  

determination of need,  aren't  you going to look at  the 

committed use? I guess, I'm trying  to  understand  why  we 

need a separate  issue to look at fully  committed for use, 

if you have an issue  on  need. 

MR. SASSO: 'I don't  think we do, Commissioner 

Jaber. The Florida  Supreme  Court in the Garcia  case  did 

not intend to change  the  decades of authority  and  this 

Commission's decisions  involving IOU siting cases. 

MR. ELIAS: Well,  and, 1, think, in the  past, 

we've looked at need determinations  where  there was 

admittedly going to be some of the output that was  sold a t  

gholesale. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Here's my question, .- 
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Mr. Elias: In  making a determination on need, won't the  

Commission need to look at how much of the power has, 

indeed,  been  requested and committed to the retail 

ratepayer? 

MR. ELIAS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. So, really, in 

reviewing your issue on need,  you'll be looking, if 

appropriate, at the  Duke  decision and analyzing  whether - -  

how  relevant it. is to your need determination. I'm trying 

to understand why t h i s  issue wouldn't be duplicative of a 

need determination  issue. 

MR. ELIAS: Well, you could argue that  this is a 

one-issue case, should  the  petition be granted.  And  then, 

we could  address each and every specific  statutory 

criteria  and every precedent and every court  decision 

that's applicable  within  the  context  of  answering that 

decision  or we can  break  it  down i n t o  more  specific, more 

focused  issues  that  we  believe  address the specific 

concerns, as well as the general  statutory  requirements 

that  we  see  upon  reviewing  the  application. 

And the answer - -  the  short answer to your 

question is, yes,  you could do  it.  The  question is 

whether  that is going to provide the  parties  with  adequate 

notice and enable the  Commissioners to best focus their 

efforts on the  specific issues  that we believe need to be- 
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brought to their attention and - -  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Let me tell you my problem 

with t h e  issue as i t ' s  worded and why I think  it does t w o  

things. It makes an assumption, and it's duplicative. 

The way you all have  worded  Issue 2, it  assumes 

that t h e  Supreme  Court has set the  standard fo r  a l l  need 

cases, and that's  still a debate.  That's  still at issue. 

How f a r  the  Supreme  Court  went is still at issue. 

It's almost l i k e  to leave this  issue in, you 

have t o  add an issue, how does the TECO decision affect 

this matter. And then, if it affects  this matter, then, 

you know, is the Florida Power Corp. need determination 

case plant fully committed f o r  use? 

What we'll do at the end of going through the 

issues is I'm going to take a 15-minute break, and I'm 

going to let you  sit down with Florida Power  Corporation 

and see if you can reach a resolution on whether t h i s  

issue is appropriate.  And if so, how  should it be worded. 

Bob, specifically, what I'm saying to  you  is t he  

way the issue is worded, you've reached the  conclusion 

t h a t  the TECO case applies to a l l  need  determinations 

forevermore. And what I'm suggesting to you is that's 

still - -  it might  still be an open issue. 

MR. ELIAS: And I don't think it was our  intent 

to preclude someone from suggesting t h a t  the case, when it 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20  

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

22 

was inapplicable  insofar as this  petition goes, I don't 

think  that  that  was - -  I know that's not what  we  intended. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Right. Thatrs why I think 

there's  room f o r  resolution. 

NOW, Mr. Sasso, I also think  that  what you've 

said to me is more of a position  than a reason to strike 

the issue. I think, there's room fo r  resolution  on how 

this issue should be worded. 

There is a question, at least in one 

Commissioner's  mind,  about  how  the Duke decision  now 

relates tu our cases of need going forward. So, keep  that 

in  mind when you're working  with  Staff on this  issue. 

MR. SASSO: I will, Commissioner. And I should 

say  that Sta f f  initially  suggested to us that while these 

issues came from the  Garcia case, they anticipated  being 

able to stipulate to both of these issues. We think  both 

of these are givens in t he  case of an IOU plant such  as 

this.  And if Staff  would be willing to stipulate  to  this 

issue, we could treat  it  the  same  way as Issue 1. 

MR. ELIAS: We'll certainly explore that 

opportunity. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Great. Well, then, 15 

minutes would be quite  appropriate,  but we'll wait until 

we're done  with a l l  the issues. 

Issue 3 .  * 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2 5  

2 3  

MR. SASSO: Yes. In  preparing  this  draft order,  

Staff  attempted to take from  our  basic  position,  which  we 

had  included  in Issue 3 and Issue 4, the  salient 

 provisions applicable  to both I ssues  3 and Issue 4, and 

they got flip-flopped  in  the  process.  And  we could 

suggest  that our position  that  appears under  Issue 3 would 

more  appropriately be placed under Issue 4 .  And t h e  

position, as it  appears under Issue 4, would be more 

appropriately  placed  under Issue 3. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Hart, youlll move  the 

position under Issue 4 and have it  reflected  under  Issue 3 

and vice versa? 

wonders 

changes 

MS. HART: We can certainly  do  that  through  the 

of word processing. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Mr. Sasso, any 

to your  positions on either of those  issues? 

MR. SASSO: No, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Issue 5, page 10. 

Issue 6. 

No changes  to  Issue 5, right? 

MS. HART: Right. 

MR. SASSO: Well, again, in preparing the 

statement,  Staff  dropped  out  paragraphs  from what we had 

included  in our prehearing  statement on this issue. We 

would prefer that they be reflected, although I.'-rn mindful- 
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of your request  that we try  to  keep  this  shorter. 

Obviously,  in  the  post-hearing  statements,  we would need 

to keep it  much  shorter, but I am concerned  that the 

portion  left  in  was  really only the  introductory paragraph 

which  indicates  we  issued an RFP. It  doesn't say much 

about what became of that. 

And so, I would be inclined  at  this time to ask 

that our  original  position be included  in  its  entirety, 

although perhaps we can  take a look and see if we can  trim 

it down during  that  15-minute break. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: That's fine. We'll turn 

the  15-minute  break, I think,  into half an  hour. And 

here's what I want  you a11 to ,do. Make sure  the  positions 

that Florida  Power Cow. has given Staff are the  positions 

you have in the  prehearing order, Ms. Hart. 

MS. HART: Y e s .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: And you're absolutely 

right, you trim down your positions  in your post-hearing 

Eilings. So, make s u r e  that  their  positions  are reflected 

3ccurately. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Issue 6 .  M r .  Sasso, you 

Eiled a motion  to st r ike Issue 6 ?  

MR. SASSO: That's  correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Staff, you  filed a response 

zo that? -- 
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MS. HART: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And Mr. Sasso, as f o r  oral 

argument on the motion, which 1'11 grant; I don't think we 

have to, actually,  in a prehearing  conference,  but I'll go 

ahead  and  grant it j u s t  to resolve  the  request for oral 

argument. 

Let me make  sure I have staff's  response, too.  

Staff,  what I don't  have  is  the  request  for  oral argument, 

but we're going  to  grant  it,  because it's not  necessary  to 

rule on anyway. They're  entitled  to ora l  argument  at  the 

prehearing  conference,  but  was  there  anything  else in the 

request fo r  oral  argument  that I need to know about? 

MS. HART: The only  thing  that I might  bring  to 

your attention  is  that they stated  either  that  it  be heard 

today or - -  and  quoting  from  their requ'est, if  need be, 

before the full panel of Commissioners.  I  would advise 

you that it needn't be heard  before  the  full  panel and 

that you can hear it today. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: We're doing  that. That's 

exactly what we're  going  to  do. So, M r .  Sasso, go ahead 

and tell me why you think  Issue 6 should be stricken. 

MR. SASSO: Very well. We have moved to strike 

both Issue 6 and, of course, also the testimony of 

Mr. Billy Dickens, which is limited to Issue 6. 

And as you point out, again, that we -- 
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conditionally  filed  rebuttal  testimony of t w o  witnesses, 

and  that would be  withdrawn,  if our motion  were  granted, 

of course.  Now, Issue 6 has changed over the  days  before 

this  hearing. And I've been  handed  the most recent 

iteration  of it, which  apparently  was  prepared  last  night 

or this  morning. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Wait a minute, Mr. Sasso, I 

need a copy of that. 

MR. SASSO: The  current  version,  for  the  record, 

asks, Wiven the Commission's  responsibility,  pursuant .to 

Sections 366.03 and 366.06, Florida  statutes,  to  set  fair, 

just, and reasonable rates  and  Section 403.519 to 

determine  the need fo r  adequate  electricity at reasonable 

=lost using  the  most  cost-effective  alternative.  available, 

should FPCIs retail  customers be obligated to pay the  cost 

3f the Hines 2 Unit fo r  the  expected l i f e  of the  Unit?" 

rhatls  the  current  version of the  issue. 

Now, how  has Staff sought to answer  this? Well, 

chey've filed the prefiled testimony of Mr. Dickens,  who 

recommends  that the cost of the  plant  be  included in rate 

Dase,  but then, five years  out,  that the decision to 

zontinue to provide  cost  recovery be subject to ex-post 

review or after-the-fact review, based on  conditions  that 

?xist  at  that  time, regardless of how  reasonable  it was to 

mild this  plant  today. 4- 
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This  proposal  violates  the  Commission's old 

precedent  in  which  the  Commission  has  repeatedly held that 

it will not  determine  policy issues, such as this, which 

really go to ratesetting, and the  like, in  the  context of 

a need  proceeding.  And Staff's proposal  amounts to an 

inappropriate  invitation  to  the  Commission to exceed its 

statutory  powers. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: This  agency  has  stated,  in 

some  form  or  fashion,  that a policy  issue is not 

appropriate f o r  a petition  for  a need determination  case? 

MR. SASSO: Yes, ma am. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Where? 

MR. SASSO: In our Hines 1 case, in  fact,  which 

we cite  and  discuss  in our memorandum. 

In that case, and Staff relies on this in its 

response; in that case, an intervenor  and FPC were 

debating  the  issue  whether QFs ought to be  held to cost 

performance  standards  and recovery of cost standards 

applied  to a utility  and  whether  there ought to be some 

limit  placed on the  amount of contracted for QF power. 

And the  Commission  determined  that that was inappropriate. 

I n  fact, Staff  argued  in  that case, as we've 

quoted  in  our  memorandum, "AS discussed  in  the  recommended 

order ,  issues  relating to t h e  recovery of costs  incurred 

in  the  construction of power plants are considered  in  the- 
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utility's rate  case. If the  intervenor  is  asking that the 

Commission  change  its  regulatory  policy  to  require 

utilities to be held to the  same  cost  and  performance 

standards as that of QFs,  this  would  have  to  be done in 

rulemaking. I' 

~ 

The Commission  agreed and held  that  policy 

issues,  such as this  were,  quote,  beyond  the  scope of this 

proceeding  and  more  properly  addressed i n  a generic 

rulemaking  docket or ratemaking  proceedings.  That  was  in 

our own Hines 1 case. 

We've also referred to an FPL decision  and a 

Gulf  decision  where  the  Commission  made  clear  that  rate 

issues  need  to  be handled in  rate cases. Other policy 

issues need to be handled  in  generic  dockets, 

investigations,  rulemaking  and the like, but  not  in  need 

cases. And the  same  result  ought  to  ensue  here. 

NOW, by way of background, I think,  it  is 

relevant to point  out  this i s sue  occurred  to  staff, 

really, as an  afterthought.  Staff  initially  provided  us 

with  a list of issues  that Staff believed  should  be 

addressed  in  this  need case. This was not  among them. 

We appeared  for the  issues  identification 

conference,  and  we  were  told that morning that the  policy 

bureau  of  the Staff wanted to raise a new  issue. We asked 

what it was, and we were advised they didn't want to r u i n  
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our lunch, we'd learn about it  at  the I.D. conference. 

COMMISSIONER JABER:  But you would  acknowledge 

that  parties  and  Staff  can raise issues  up  until  the 

prehearing  conference. 

MR. SASSO: Yes. And our point is not  to say it 

was untimely,  but  to say that  this was injected outside 

the  scope of the  issues tha t  Staff, itself, originally, 

conceived  were  the  relevant  issues  in  this  proceeding. 

And the issue was identified  in a conference, in  general 

terms,  not in writing. We indicated  we were upset about 

this. The Staff said they  weren't  surprised,  but  they 

pressed ahead w i t h  this. We received a written version of 

it  later.  It has changed two or three times. And now we 

have  the current version. 

What's wrong with t h i s  issue? Well, as I've 

indicated, it calls upon the Commission to make a 

fundamental policy change  in  the  way the Commission 

regulates utilities.  This is a very broad fundamental 

policy issue that Staff is calling upon the  Commission  to 

result in  the  context of our need proceeding. Mr. Dickens 

explained  in  his  testimony - -  

COMMISSIONER  JABER:  If  that were true,  can't 

this agency change policy anytime it deems appropriate? 

MR. SASSO: No, it can't.  The  legislature has 

made quite clear that rulemaking is a preferred..means of - 
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policymaking,  and  certain procedures have to be taken. 

And more fundamentally, as 1'11 explain,  in  this  instance, 

the  agency doesn't even have t he  statutory  authority  to 

change this policy. 

Mr. Dickens  testified in his  prefiled  testimony 

t h a t  he is  recommending a change to what  he calls the 

orthodox regulatory compact,  which  exists under current 

law. And he agreed under t he  - -  in his deposition about 

the terms of this  compact. He characterized it as an 

agreement among the state in the form of the Public 

Service  Commission, t he  ratepayers  and  the  utilities,  to 

the  following,  and it's more than  that. It's a matter of 

statutory  right and constitutional right. Under this 

compact, regulated utilities  have an obligation to serve. 

And pursuant to that  obligation, they make decisions to 

build power plants. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: But isn't the  question - -  

doesn't  Staff's issue go to  how much of the cost should be 

recovered from the retail ratepayer? 

MR. SASSO: It goes to how much and  it goes to 

the procedure for examining cost recovery. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: No, that's Mr. Dickens' 

testimony t h a t  goes to the procedure. I'm j u s t  talking 

about the issue right now. 

MR. SASSO: Well, the Staff's issue goes, 
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fundamentally, t o  the  question  should there be cost 

recovery for the life of this plant at  all o r ,  to some 

extent,  should  that be denied? I mean, that's  what  the 

issue squarely raises. And Mr. Dickens addresses that 

issue. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Now, if  the  'statute - -  your 

argument  is  the  statute says that the  costs have to be 

recovered from  the retail ratepayer? 

MR. SASSO: That question is answered by the 

statute - - 

COMMISSIONER JAE3ER: All right. 

MR. SASSO: . - -  that says that we have a right to 

a reasonable return on costs reasonably incurred.  That is 

answered by a statute. They're, essentially,  asking 

should the statute be changed. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Now, if the statute  answers 

the  question, what's wrong with the question? If you k n o w  

what  the answer is going to be to the  question,  what's  the 

harm  in  having  the  question? 

MR. SASSO: Well, there are t w o  reasons why 

we're concerned  about it. One is it is not  appropriate in 

a need  proceeding to be asking  should a legislation  be 

changed.' Even if the answer  is no, the Commission doesn't 

have authority to  change  the  legislation.  That is not an 

appropriate issue  to be adjudicated at a hearing in a need 
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case. 

The  question,  whether  a  legislation  ought to be 

amended, is being  addressed by the governor's  study 

commission  right now, but  it  is  not an appropriate  issue 

to be addressed at the  need  case.  It  is  only - -  it only 

creates a potential fo r  mischief. We're  going to spend 

our  time  debating  this  issue. We've already filed the 

testimony of three witnesses. We're talking  about 

discovery. We'll be consuming hearing  time. 

And the best that  can be said of it, as you've 

indicated,  Commissioner Jaber, the  answer  is summarily no, 

the  law should not be changed,  it  cannot be changed. So 

what is the benefit to the Commission or the  parties to 

debate  legislative  change  in  the  context of a need case? 

The worse  that  can  come of this is tremendous 

mischief,  because if some action is  taken  at the 

invitation of Staff that's going to create legal error and 

needless appeals, which  will delay and potentially thwart 

the development of this project. 

So, we're very concerned about  the injection,  in 

this case, of a legislative policy  issue, which should  not 

be addressed by the Commission in our need case. We don't 

want to be sidetracked with statutory  legislative  policy 

issues. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Where in t h e i r  issue, d 
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Mr. Sasso, do  you  believe  they're  advocating  that t he  

statute  be  changed? 

MR. SASSO: In Mr. Dickens' testimony he 

recommends a proposal to change the regulatory  compact. 

NOW, of course, he doesn't get i n t o  a discussion of 

statutes, because he's talking about policy. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: That's Mr. Dickens' 

testimony,  and  that will be subject to cross examination 

and your rebuttal  testimony. Look at  this issue and  tell 

me where in this  issue  Staff is advocating  that  the 

statutes be changed. 

MR. SASSO: They don't advocate it in t he  

statement of the issue, of course, because it's a 

question.  But  the  question is, is it appropriate to 

obligate  Florida Power Corporation's  retail  customer fo r  

t he  cos t  of t he  Hines 2 Unit for the expected life of the  

Unit? 

We  would  suggest  two  things: At best, that's a 

rate case  issue. As this Commission has recognized  in the 

Hines 2 case, that's a rate case issue.  The  Commission 

has rules for handling  rate cases. There are special 

procedures  that  have to be followed, notice has to be 

given, special hearings have to be convened,  and they're 

attempting  to  inject in this proceeding  a  ratemaking issue 

that  is  not appropriate f o r  this case. -- 
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Second, yes, they  haven't given the  answer,  but 

the  question  makes  no  sense,  unless we're prepared  to 

contemp1at.e an answer  other  than  summarily  yes. I mean, 

lwhy does it  make  any  sense  to  identify as issues  questions 

that  have clear statutory  responses  right down the  line? 

You know, is t he  Public  Service  Commission  the 

regulatory  authority? Is Florida Power Corporation a 

utility?  Is  Florida Power Corporation  entitled to a 

reasonable  rate of return on its assets? We could go 

through  the whole set of statutory  standards and criteria, 

but  that  is  not  an  appropriate use of issues for  a 

hearing, let alone  the  submission of testimony. 

We've already been called  upon  to  expend  time 

and effort and energy in  the  development and filing of 

testimony  on  this  issue,  which  is really a nonissue. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What  do  you  think the 

legislature  meant  in  Section 403.519 when  it said that  the 

Commission  must  consider adequate electricity  at 

reasonable cost? What do you  think  the  legislature  meant? 

MR. SASSO: Well, that's quite clear.  Based  on 

a long  line of precedent by this  Commission,  reasonable 

costs are to be determined  at  the time a decision  is  made 

to build a plant, based on all of  the  circumstances known 

at  the  time. There are  procedures  to  develop  this. 

The utility is required  to  issue  an RFP, if itt+ 
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an IOU, as we have, to test market, evaluate  responses. 

We do our own analysis. And as a result of all the 

information  known  to  us  and  the  circumstances  that  exist 

at the.  time the  decision  is made, w e  make a decision 

whether  the  costs are reasonable  for  going  forward  with 

this project. 

Again,  in  his  testimony, Mr. Dickens conceded 

that our proposal is  the most cost-effective  proposal 

available to Florida  Power  Corporation  today.  The Staff 

is seeking  to  inject an entirely  different  issue  in  this 

case.  The  issue  is  framed  around Mr. Dickens' proposal, 

not  vice  versa,  and that's important to understand. 

COMMISSIONER J a B E R :  All right.  Let  me keep 

bringing you back to the issue. I don't want  to  talk 

about Mr. Dickens'  testimony y e t .  Let me ask t h e  question 

this way. The Commission, under 403, is reguired to look 

at reasonable  cost. 

MR. SASSO : Correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Is it your argument  that 

this issue  doesn't go to the Commission's  determination of 

whether this is adequate  electricity  at  reasonable cost? 

MR. SASSO: My position  is we already have an 

issue about  reasonable  cost. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Which one? 

MR. SASSO: It's probably Issue 3 .  No, that's-- 
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reliability and integrity. Issue 4, is  there a need f o r  

t he  proposed  Hines 2 Unit,  taking into.account t h e  need 

f o r  adequate  electricity at reasonable cost? Issue '7, is 

the  proposed Hines 2 Unit  the  most  cost-effective 

alternative  available? 

Those issues squarely address the issues that 

have to be dealt with  in  this hearing. And  those  issues, 

under  well-established law, are to be resolved based on 

the  facts and circumstances known to the utility  and  the 

Commission today. 

The reason Staff  wants to inject  this as a 

different issue is precisely because they want to raise a 

different issue, not  either of these  that  have  already 

been  clearly  and  specifically  articulated. And we cannot 

address this issue, with a l l  respect, without reference to 

the origin of it and the  intent of it and the proposal 

that this is built  around,  namely Mr. Dickensl  testimony. 

That was the  origin of t h i s  issue. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Anything  else? We're going 

to come back to M r .  Dickens'  testimony,  but I want to 

limit your argument now f o r  the issue. 

MR. SASSO: Okay. As I was indicating, this 

issue calls upon the  Commission,  essentially, to review 

statutory  authority, to change statutory  authority. It is 

very different  from  the other  issues which are squarely -- 
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encompassed  is 403.519, such as reasonable  cost  recovery, 

reasonable cost - -  I'm sorry, not reasonable cost 

recovery,  but t h e  need f o r  adequate  electricity  at 

reasonable cost. This is a cost  recovery  issue,  which  is 

a rate issue. 

The Supreme Court has held, and the  statutes 

make it quite  clear,  that  utilities  shall  not  be  denied a 

reasonable  rate of return on their ra te  base.  The  Supreme 

Court has held  that is a constitutional  right.,  That is 

not an issue  that is fairly  subject  to  debate  in  our  need 

case. 

Should  the  Commission  wish t o  raise  rate 

recovery  issues,  there's an appropriate  vehicle  provided 

in the  statutes for doing so, and there  is also a law  that 

governs  how  they  can do so. They  cannot  retroactively 

disapprove  decisions  to  build  plants based on hindsight 

review,  which is the  thrust of the proposal. That's very 

clearly  established  in  the law. 

Our decision to build  this plant, which is 

subject  to  scrutiny by the  Commission  today,  must be 

reviewed based on fac ts  and  circumstances  existing  today. 

Staff  wants to suggest a proposal where, five years out, 

we include a condition  in the  need  determination  requiring 

that  the Commission and the utility  review  circumstances 

that exist, then  to  decide  whether cost recovery  should be 
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permitted  going forward, and that is inappropriate. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: That's Mr. Dickens' 

testimony. 

MR. SASSO: That is Mr. Dickens' testimony. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER:  That will be subject  to 

cross  examination. 

MR. SASSO: That  is  correct. 

COMMISSIONER J m E R :  And  refuted by your 

rebuttal  testimony. 

MR. SASSO: That is correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: If this issue is  left in, 

there  will be two ways  that  Staff can attempt to have 

evidence on this issue, right,  testimony or cross 

examination? 

MR. SASSO: Right. 

COMMISSIONER  J-ER: So, I'm st i l l  struggling to 

understand  what your problem with  this  issue is. 

MR. SASSO: It is not an  issue  that is 

encompassed within t h e  statutory  criteria. Now, in the 

latest  iteration  they have attempted  to  anchor  it  in the 

statute, but that doesn't make it so, because.we already 

have issues  taken  out of the  statute. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: But why  doesn't  it fall 

under 403.519 with  respect to looking at adequate 

electricity  at reasonable cost? 4- 
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MR. SASSO: That  issue  is  already  clearly 
I 

identified.  This  is  intended  to be a  different  issue. 

That  creates  mischief.  It  creates  peril f o r  us going 

forward in this  hearing.  There  is no good  reason to have 

a separate  issue  which, at best, is redundant and, at 

worst, is intended  to do something  different. 

NOW, what does Staff say about  this  in  its 

response? Well, first,  they've  said  this is not  a  policy 

issue,  they're not attempting  to  raise  a policy issue. 

But, in fact,  that is exactly  contrary to what we have 

been  told  from  day  one  about  this. We were  told  that  this 

was an issue  that  the  policy  bureau  wanted  to raise. 

Mr. Dickens, who is going to address  this, is 

from the policy bureau. He's identified  himself as a 

policy wok. He is commissioned to look at  the  tea leaves, 

as he put  it,  and to anticipate  policy  changes, and that 

is  what  the Staff intends  to do with  this  issue. 

Staff goes on  to say that  consideration  of 

impact  to  ratepayers of costs of new  plants  is  within the 

ambit  of  the  issues  in 403.519, As we've indicated, those 

issues  in 403.519 are clearly flagged. 

Staff goes on to  say,  well,  this  is  within  the 

Zommission's jurisdiction  to  set ra tes ,  which  are  just, 

fair, and reasonable. This is  not a rate case. There are 

special  proceedings fo r  rate  cases. -- 
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COMMISSIONER J M E R :  When was the  last  time  you 

filed a rate  case? 

MR. SASSO: Rate case was  filed  many  years ago, 

several years ago. But  whether or not that's appropriate, 

we currently  have  a  stipulation  that the Commission has 

approved  about our rates. When  and  whether  that  is 

appropriate  is  the  subject for another  day  and  another 

context. 

Staff goes on in  their  response  to  argue  that a 

conclusion of prudence is implicit  in  the  process of 

determining  whether a given proposal is  cost-effective  and 

reasonable. We agree completely  that if the  Commission 

approves  our  decision to build  this  plant,. based on 

circumstances demonstrated  today, which demonstrate  today 

that t he  decision is an appropriate one and the  selection 

is cost-effective,  then,  yes, t h a t  does indicate  that it's 

a  prudent  decision. 

Staff recognizes  that  we  have  an  appropriate 

objection  to  revisiting  that on the  basis of hindsight. 

And they  say  the  reason  they  want  this issue in today is 

to deal with that, so it's not going .to be hindsight 

review.  But  that's  like  saying,  well,  you know, I'm going 

take your  wallet tomorrow, and it's okay if I: do it, if 1 

t e l l  you today I'm going to do it. It doesn't  make  it 

Dkay to  suggest  that  there be hindsight  review  five years 
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down the road just because they  tell us today that they're 

going to engage in it. 

So, to sum up, Commissioner Jaber, we  don't 

think  that  this issue has  any appropriate place in  this 

proceeding. You have suggested some ways why issues of 

cost might be relevant,  and those are squarely  and  fairly 

encompassed in other  issues  that  have  been  identified. 

The intent of this,  and  the spiri t  of it and the wording 

of it, really, is to address cost  recovery,  which  is not 

within  the scope of this proceeding. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: You think that  one of the 

reasons this issue should be stricken is because it 

duplicates, to some degree,  Issue 4? 

MR. SASSO: It  certainly does. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Dickens'  testimony, 

then, could be considered under the  ambit of Issue 4? 

MR. SASSO: No, because he's already 

disqualified  it as under Issue 4 .  He said he has no 

quarrel with  the proposition that we have demonstrated 

compliance  with all criteria of 4 0 3 . 5 1 9 .  This is t he  most 

cost-effective alternative  and t ha t  we're entitled to a 

need  determination to build this plant.  His only concern 

is t ha t  there be a condition f o r  future  revisiting of this 

decision. That's his testimony. It does not  support - -  

it does not address  any of the other issues in this case,-- 
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which is why we've  moved  to  strike it- 

COMMISSIONER J-ER: All right. Anything else? 

MR. SASSO: Not at this time, thank  you. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Staff? 

MS. HART: Commissioner, Mr. Sasso has made a 

lot of my arguments for me. Staf f  is  not  suggesting  that 

this is- a new policy issue. In fact, we're taking 

exception  to the  characterization of this as a policy 

issue. It's simply a component of the  examination t h a t  

the  Commission  must do under 403.519, as the Commissioners 

pointed out, the need for  adequate  electricity at 

reasonable cost and whether this proposal is t h e  most 

cost-effective  alternative  available. 

In addition, I'd point out that  the  statute also 

states  that  the  Commission  shall  consider any other 

matters,  within  its  jurisdiction,  that it deems are 

relevant  to  the  proceeding.  Consequently, FPC's argument 

t h a t  this  is  outside  the  statutory author i ty  or the new 

legislation that's necessary is not correct.  It is 

squarely within the  terms of 403.519 for the Commission to 

consider  the cost impacts of a proposed plant. 

The impact of t he  cost of any proposal on the 

r e t a i l  customer is inherent in the  consideration of t h e  

determination of the reasonable cost of service and 

whether it's the  most  cost-effective  alternative. -- 
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Once this  commission  grants a need 

determination,  all.  those  decisions  and  costs  identified to 

that  point  are  deemed  prudent. And those  costs are 

subject t o  recovery  in t he  absence of changed 

circumstances. So, Staff is trying to make  the  Commission 

aware  that  these  matters  should  be  considered  in the 

context of the  need  determination. 

Rather  than  proposing a strictly  hindsight 

review, Staff's proposals are  that  the  Commission 

consider,  in  the  context of this  proceeding, t h e  changing 

regulatory environment  that's  being seen nationwide. 

While  hindsight may not be appropriate,  neither  is  tunnel 

vision, and the  Commission  cannot  ignore  the  realities 

that  have  occurred  in t he  nine years since Hines 1. It's 

been  nine years since FPC las t  saw a need  determination. 

And there have been a number of events  that  have 

taken place, including - -  as I s t a t e  in our response, 

including the Energy Policy Act of 1992 and  the FERC 

orders 888, 889 and  order 2,000. It's entirely 

appropriate f o r  the Commission to consider  the  impact 

that these actions,  which are designed  to foster a 

competitive  wholesale  market,  should  have  on a utility's 

resource choices. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: See, let me - -  what is your 

- -  in your own words, what  is your issue?  Because *- 
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everything youlve  said is not should FPC'S re ta i l  

customers  be  obligated  to  pay the costs.  What I hear  you 

saying is there is no dispute as to t he  cost recovery 

co'ming from the r e t a i l  ratepayer. You're not  trying  to 

say that - -  you're not  trying to prevent Florida Power 

Corporation from recovering  the costs of the unit from the 

retail ra tepayer .  

MS. HART: Appropriately  recovering, I would 

agree  with  that. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Right. And you just 

acknowledged that once the  decision on the need is made, 

the  costs are prudent. 

MS. HART: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: That's not should Florida 

Power Corporation's r e t a i l  customers be obligated  to pay. 

You answered your own question. What is your issue? What 

is Staff  t ry ing  to accomplish with this  issue?  That's t h e  

first  question. And the second question is how is it 

different from Issue 4? 

MS. €€ART: Again, I think, it could be taken up 

in  Issue 4, outside  the  considerations of trying to set 

out t h e  issues as explicitly as possible for. all the 

parties involved. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Answer this, Ms. Hart, for  

me. Is the Commission - -  assuming this is a policy issue, 
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is t he  Commission  prevented  from  identifying or 

considering  policy issues in  need  determination cases? 

MS. HART: I would say no. They've done it 

before. Actually, in Hines 1 there was discussion of the 

impacts of various things  on  FPC's  credit  rating, which is 

arguably  a  policy  issue  that's  not any different  than  the 

consideration  of the costs  involved in building  Hines 2 .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: And how do you respond  to 

Mr. Sasso's argument t ha t  pure  policy  decisions are more 

appropriate for rulemaking? 

MS. HART: Well, rulemaking - -  I'd have  to  say I 

disagree.  Rulemaking is something  that  is done wherthere 

is a uniform  kind of policy determination  that's  going to 

apply to all cases in  the future. 

I would argue that  need  determinations need to 

be taken on a case-by-case basis and that every need at 

every  point  in  time is going to be different. And so, any 

guidelines  that a r u l e  might  provide would be too 

restrictive. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Tell me  the issue, in your 

own words,  that you envision  addressing  your concerns. 

You said you want the Commission to consider the  cost 

impacts. 

MS. HART: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: You said you want  the -- 
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Commission  to  consider  the  changing regulatory 

environment. A lot has changed  since  Hines 1. 

MS. ERRT: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What is the concern  that 

Staff has that  it  wants the Commission  to  consider? 

MS. HART: The  concern is that  ratepayers will 

be on  the hook. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay.  Here's  what we're ' 

going to do. We're going to start the  30-minute break. 

Actually, I'm going  to start back up at 11:15. H e r e  are 

the  things I want  accomplished  during the-break. 

Nr. Sasso, youlre going to make  sure  that Staf f  has your 

?ositions to Issues 2, 3, 4, and 5 ,  1 think. 

MR. SASSO: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER J-ER: Ms. H a r t ,  you're  going to 

nake sure you have that. 

MS. HART: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: You're going to try  to 

resolve  Issue 2, and I'm going to  consider  Issue 6 during 

:he break. 

MR. SASSO: May 1 just  correct one misimpression 

:hat  may have been  created? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Yes. 

MR. SASSO: Ms. Hart  mentioned  that  there was 

iiscussion  in Hines 1 about credit ratings, et cetera. 
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That  discussion,  which  Staff  mentions  in i ts  memorandum, 

was a discussion  between  the  parties.  When t he  Commission 

issued its order,  it  declared  that  policy  issues were 

outside  the  scope  of  the  proceeding,  and  that was the 

policy issue  it was addressing,  the  set-up policy issues 

of which that  was 1. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Sasso, during  the 

break, you need to take a look at  Issue 6 and  work  with 

Staff on wording of the  issue  that  would  satisfy 

zveryone's concerns. To t h e  degree  that issue is 

duplicative  with Issue 4, I want  someone  to  point  out  to 

ne the  duplication. 

And Staff, you need to be prepared  to  point  out 

20 me the difference  between  the  issues.  Let me just - -  

you know, fair  warning, I'm not  inclined to strike  a  staff 

issue,  i f  it's appropriate in a proceeding.  But  Staff, I 

ion't  hear  that  yet. So, you  need  to be ready to explain 

10 me why this  issue  is  different from Issue 4, and what 

it is you're trying  to  accomplish. 

Okay. We'll convene at 11:15. 

(Brief recess. ) 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Let's continue t h e  

mehearing. Ms. Hart, did you get clarification  on  the 

losi t ions for Issues 3, 4, and 5? 

MS. HART: Yes, 3 and 4 and 5, yes .  We will be- 
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switching FPC's - -  we'll be switching 3 and 4, their 

position, and on 5 we'll insert  their  entire position, as 

stated  in  their  prehearing  statement. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Let's go back to 

Issue 2. 

MS. HART: Issue 2 ,we  have  not  been able to 

reach resolution on. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Elias, when we left 

Issue 2, I suggested  to you that  the  determination  of 

hlly committed for use can be addressed  in t he  need issue 

m d  you, I think,  acknowledged  that  that  could  be done? 

MR. ELIAS : Yes. Could we  leave  open the 

?ossibility of reaching a stipulation on this  issue? Or, 

TOU know, it may be that we can come to some resolution 

that, you know, between now and  the  time  the  prehearing 

xder  is issued. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Yes. 

That brings us  back  to Issue 6. Staff, as I 

mderstand  it,  you  have  revised  language? 

MS. HART: Yes, and I I 11 read it. "Given the 

Incertainty  in  today's  energy  market, is it prudent fo r  

'PC to  commit  to a 30-year rate base generating  unit? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Read it again. 

MS. HART:  "Given the  uncertainty  in today's 

tnergy market,  is  it  prudent f o r  FPC to  commit  to a 
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30-year rate  base  generating  unit?" 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Sasso, do you have an 

objection  to  that  issue as a  replacement fo r  t he  current 

Issue 6? 

MR. SASSO: Yes,  we do. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What's your objection? 

MR. SASSO: Well, we've had only a few minutes 

to consider it. It was j u s t  handed to us a  moment ago. 

But based on our quick review,  this  appears to be  an 

attempt now to  challenge  our  decision  to  build  the  plant, 

which has never been placed  in issue by the S ta f f  before. 

It is  not  what Mr. Dickens  testified  to.  It seems to 

substitute a different  standard f o r  the need-standard in 

t he  s t a t u t e .  It assumes or implies  that  uncertainty in 

today's energy  market  is a given,  and we're not sure 

what's intended by that. 

The rules are clear.  They are well defined  in 

the Florida s ta tu tes .  Unless  and  until  they  are changed, 

we are obligated to follow them. We have followed them to 

a tee. And so, as far as we're concerned, w e  don't think 

it's an open question what our obligation to do is  at  this 

point  and  time. So, we don't think it's an appropriate 

issue. To the  extent  that  Staff is simply trying to 

rephrase other issues that  are  clearly presented by 

403.519, they're already in the case. *- 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. L e t  me get some 

clarification  from you on your position, whether it 

relates to the new-reworded  issue or the old Issue 6 .  Is 

it your position that the Commission  does  not have the 

authority  to look at cost a f t e r  the  petition for need is 

approved? 

MR. SASSO: No, not  at all. The Commission 

always retains the authority under  existing  law  to review 

cost on a prudency basis, to review our ongoing  operation 

of the  plant on a prudency  basis. The Commission  has 

tools under  existing  law to deal with  these  issues.  There 

may be a rate case  issue. 

What  this  represents is really an effort  to get 

a jump on restructuring  deregulation  in  two  respects; one 

is we keep being t o l d  repeatedly by Staf f  we ought to go 

out to the  wholesale market. Well, t h e  Supreme Court has 

already spoken to that. We followed  the rules set down by 

this, Commission  about how we test  the  wholesale market. 

We issued an RFP, we got responses, we evaluated  them. It 

so happens  that  the  two  proposals  we got do not comply 

with  existing law,,but w e  evaluated  them anyway. 

So, we followed the  rules about how you test  the 

wholesale market, and we went ahead and made the  decision, 

given alternatives available to us at this time. So, we 

think it’s utterly  inappropriate  for Staff to be i 
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attempting to force  us to go out into  this  so-called 

wholesale  market,  which  the  Supreme  Court  has just flatly 

squelched  with  respect to the  merchant issue. It's  an 

attempt to really  backdoor  the  merchant  issue. It's an 

attempt to get  a jump on deregulation in another  respect, 

too;  and  that is, to  the  extent  the  laws  in  the  state may 

change some day, to  the  extent  that  there will be 

deregulation  or  restructuring,  there  will  be  stranded  cost 

issues. We will  have  to  deal  with  stranded costs, 

stranded  benefits  and so on. 

And, you know, .at  that  time  all  the  stakeholders 

will have to come  at a table  and  address those issues  in  a 

responsible  manner,  and  the  legislature  will  have  to 

address how to handle  transition. There has not  been 

deregulation.  It  is  not well defined,  if  it occurs; when 

it occurs, it's up in t he  air.  What  it looks like is up 

in air. It'll be the  legislature's  responsibility  to 

address  the  transition, and none of that  framework is in 

This is an effort  to get an unauthorized jump on 

that  deregulation and to engineer a transition in an 

inappropriate  manner.  That's really what  this  is.  And 

that's  our  concern. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Setting  aside your concern, 

with  respect  to deregulation and  with  respect to the -- 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

LO 

11 

1 2  

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2 5  

52 

wholesale  market  overall,  what I hear  you  acknowledging is 

that you think  this  agency  has  authority to look at  cost 

a f t e r  the  approval of the  need  determination  application. 

MR. SASSO: There is a well-defined  body of law 

about  prudency  review, and it  cannot  be a hindsight t ype  

of prudency  review.  But  currently,  in  this  proceeding, 

that's not what  this is all about.  Right  now  the  statute 

dictates  that  we  are  here to inquire  into  need. Is there 

2 need for this  plant, given certain  criteria? All of 

those  criteria  have been identified  and  spelled out  in the 

issues in this  case. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Right.  But as part of the 

inquiry into  need,  you also acknowledge  that  .the 

Jommission has the  authority to look at the cost. aspect. 

MR. SASSO: The reasonableness of the cost, yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: A11  right. Is there any 

?lace, in your opinion,  in  this  proceeding  to look at the 

zost  recovery  mechanism? 

MR. SASSO: Not cost recovery. A s  such, the 

:ommission  should not be looking  at  cost  recovery  issues 

in this proceeding.  There is a cost recovery  mechanism 

:hat  gives  the  Commission  the  occasion to do that. 

There's a rate  proceeding,  there  are  provisions 

.n t h e  statute that speak about  how the  utility can seek 

:ate  adjustments,  how  the Commission could seek rate 
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adjustments.  That's done on a different  proceeding,  and 

it's done  under cer ta in  standards,  which we've already 

discussed,  to some extent,  statutory  standards,  that make 

clear that once a plan  is  in  rate base, we are  entitled  to 

a reasonable  return on that  investment. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. Here's what 

1'11 do with Issues 2 and 6 :  I'm not  going to rule on 

including either issue today. By Friday, we will  issue  an 

order on both of those issues. 

To the degree either  issue is reworded, Staff, I 

want you to show  the  new  language  to  Florida  Power 

Corporation and be  able to represent to me whether  they've 

seen it ,  whether they  agree  with it. 

Florida Power Corp., I've got  your  motion  to 

strike.  That  is a l l  I need  to make my  ruling. And we 

will have a decision on both of those issues by  Friday so 

that if the issues  stay in, they'll be incorporated  in  the 

prehearing  order. To the  degree they're going to be 

modified, I will modify them, which  means you need  to be 

prepared  to have a position t o  the  modified  issues  after 

you talk to Staff. 

MR. SASSO: Ma'am, do I understand  that you may 

- -  to the extent you believe it's appropriate, you may 

modify  issues  from  the form in  which  they're  presented by 

Staff?  Because if that's t h e  case, then, we would need an 
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opportunity to state a position  to  any modified issue. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Yes. All right? Issue 7 

- -  but let me say something  to  Staff  and to Florida Power 

C o u p .  It's Wednesday. That gives  you  the  rest of this 

afternoon  and  tomorrow to get  together and talk about 

these  issues.  You're  not  far from each other. And as I 

listen to the  arguments,  in  certain  places, you're saying 

the same thing. So, I encourage you to sit down and talk 

this  afternoon  and  tomorrow. 

Issue 7. 

Issue 8. 

MS. HART: We believe  that we've reached a 

stipulation  on Issue 8. And so, that  will be added  to 

stipulated matters. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: What is the  stipulation? 

MS. HART: That there are no - -  that the answer 

is no to t h e  issue as it's stated. We agree with FPC. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: So, the  stipulation  will 

read, "There are  no  conservation  measures taken by or 

reasonably  available to Florida Power  Corporation which 

might  mitigate  the need f o r  the  proposed  power  plant." 

MS. HART: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Changes to Issue 9? 

MR. SASSO: Yes, ma'am. The draft order 

indicates  that our witness  on this issue will be -- 
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Mr. Crisp. We would like  to  add  Taylor, also. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Issue 10. 

MR. SASSO: Yes. We would l i k e  t o  s ta te  a 

position on that and have that reflected in  the order. 

Our position would be, yes, af te r  a f.avorable 

determination of need. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: We really don't need this 

issue, do we, Issue lo? 

MS. WART: I think, we refer to it  as a filler, 

a space saver. It will be in the  recommendation, 

ultimately. We can strike it, i f  the Commissioner 

prefers. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: It's all right. Leave it 

f o r  now, but I really don't need to see this issue in 

other cases. I think, it's a given t ha t  you're going to 

address the  closing of the docket. 

MS. HART: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER:  Exhibit List. 

MR. SASSO: Yes. As we  indicated previously, we 

would like to add, contingent on t h e  Commissioner's ruling 

on Issue 6 ,  the  deposition of Mr. Dickens. 

COMMISSIONER JABER:  Can there be a stipulation 

with respect to having Mr. Dickens'  deposition as an 

exhibit at t h e  hearing? 

MS. HART: Okay. We have no problem with  that,- 
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provided any depositions  that  we  take of FPC's rebuttal 

witnesses  will be afforded the  same  treatment,  and  any 

witnesses  that  we  take  depositions of. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr.  Sasso? 

MR. SASSO: I'm sorry, I'm not  sure I understood 

the proposal. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: What they're saying is they 

don't have any objection to j u s t  stipulating  Mr.. Dickens' 

deposition  into the record,  if  you  don't  have any problem 

with their use of depositions of your  witnesses, 

stipulating  those  depositions  into -the record. 

MR. SASSO: I don't anticipate any objection, 

but they  haven't  taken any depositions. I'm not.sure 

uhether  or not there'll be an intervenor. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: All right. Here's what 

dell1 do. For now, you can show Mr. Dickens'  deposition 

3s an exhibit. 

MS. HART: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER JABER:  And to the degree you can 

reach a stipulation, you can do  that by Friday. 

MS. HART: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: Anything else, Mr. Sasso, 

In the  exhibits? 

MR. SASSO: N o .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Staff? -- 
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MS. HART: NO. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER:  Proposed  Stipulations. I 

 had that you will have Issue 1 as a stipulation - -  

MS. HART: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: - -  and Issue 7. No, 

actually,  it  was Issue 8. 

MS. HART: That's  correct. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: We've addressed all  pending 

motions, in some form or fashion. Youlll have  an  order to 

me on the  confidential  classification  by Friday. I 

thought  there  were  objections to discovery  outstanding, 

too 

MS. HART: Those have been resolved. Discovery 

has changed hands,  and the  objections were overcome. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: All right. 

MR. SASSO: Excuse  me,  Commissioner.  There 

should be an  additional  item  under Pending Motions,  to the 

extent  request  for  confidential  classification will 

qualify. And sometimes, I know  they're'  not  listed as 

motions,  but we do have  a  second  request for  confidential 

classification  concerning  interrogatory answers we've 

provided, and  that  should be reflected, as long as we're 

reflecting  the other  one. 

MS. HART: And documents as well,  right? 

MR. SASSO: Yes. -- 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: When was that filed? 

MS. HART: I don't  believe it's been filed yet. 

'They provided documents  yesterday  that Staff reviewed and 

let  them know which  things we wanted  copies of and, 

therefore, their  request will  cover  those  things that 

Staff  picked  out,  rather than a wholesale  kind of request 

for all of it. So, I believe, they'll file it  shortly. 

MR. SASSO: There was  a  second  request filed ' . 

yesterday  for  the  interrogatories  and.attachments to 

interrogatories and, perhaps, it was j u s t  too recent  to be 

picked up on  the screen. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER:  Okay. Ms. Bart, j u s t  have 

it reflected  as a pending  motion  and  bring me an order - -  

MS. HART: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: - -  if appropriate. 

NOW, Mr. Sasso, w i t h  respect to striking 

Mr.  Dickens'  testimony,  that  will  depend on the  issue,  to 

some degree.  Obviously, with respect to striking  the 

issue  and the  testimony, I recognize  that your rebuttal 

testimony  would  be  withdrawn  or  not? 

MR. SASSO: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Anything else? 

MS. HART: Not from  Staff. 

COMMISSIONER  JABER: Do you all  understand  what 

you'  re  to do before Friday? 
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MS. HART: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Great, thank you. 

prehearing is adjourned . 

(Prehearing concluded at 12:OO p.m.) 

- - - - -  
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